STATE OF CONNECTICUT

MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTABILITY REVIEW BOARD

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Meeting Date and Time: Thursday, March 7, 2019 10:00 AM — 12:30 PM

Meeting Location: State Board of Regents Boardroom, Ground Level, 61 Woodland Street, Hartford, CT

Members in Attendance: Secretary McCaw, Deputy Treasurer Savitsky, Matthew Brokman, Patrick Egan,
David Walker, Scott Jackson, Robert White, Tom Hamilton, Mark Waxenberg, Stephen Falcigno (phone)

Staff in Attendance: Julian Freund,OPM; Alison Fisher, OPM

Agenda

Call to Order & Opening Remarks:

Secretary McCaw called the meeting to order at 10:06 AM. She introduce Deputy
Treasurer Linda Savitsky. Ms. Savitsky described her background in working with distressed
municipalities and said she is looking forward to serving on the MARB.

Public Comment* Period

Kevin Campo, of West Haven, indicated his support of a transition to the State Partnership
health plan and encourages the City to make the change. He referenced a study by Segal
Consulting that projects a savings for the City by switching to the Partnership.

Approval of Minutes: February 7, 2018
A motion to adopt the minutes was made by Mr. White with a second by Mr. Brokman. The
motion passed unanimously with Ms. Savitsky abstaining.

City of West Haven Issues and Items
a. Review and Discussion: FY 2018 Audit Report

Joe Centofanti of PKF O’Connor Davies reviewed a summary of the City’s 2018 Audit for the
board (attached). Mr. White asked if the increase in the City’s fund balance could be
attributed to the Municipal Restructuring Funds. Mr. Centofanti indicated that is the case,
and that the deficit bonds issued by the City also contributed to the positive fund balance.
Secretary McCaw asked about what is driving the negative net position in Internal Service
funds. Mr. Centofanti attributed the negative balances to health claims payable and to
workers compensation. Mr. Hamilton asked if workers compensation is self-insured, and
Mr. Centofanti replied that it is. Mr. Hamilton asked what makes up the claims payable in
the medical internal service fund, and Mr. Centofanti explained it is the IBNR. Ms. McCaw
asked how these figures compare to last year. Mr. Centofanti explained that the prior year’s
audit did not break out the internal service funds the same way in the prior year, making
comparison difficult. Mr. Walker asked if the audit included a footnote about the state aid.
Mr. Centofanti said that the state aid is shown as a revenue item.



Mr. Walker raised issues the City has with negative cash balances and with segregation of
duties, including in payroll. He suggested the payroll issues need to be addressed
immediately. Secretary McCaw asked about the Management Letter that is typically issued
along with the audit report. Mr. Centofanti responded that the focus was on completing the
financials within the timeframe

Members discussed the City’s funding for health benefits and whether a claims margin is
factored into budgeting for medical benefit costs. The City began the practice of including a
claim margin in the current year. Mr. Walker noted the $208 million liability for retiree
health benefits. Members discussed funding for OPEB which the City has been funding on a
pay-as-you-go basis. Mr. White inquired as to when the cost of continuing on a pay-as-you-
go basis would be unmanageable. Secretary McCaw suggested following up with the actuary
on that question to determine when there would be a significant jump in health insurance
costs. Mr. White asked about the contractual provisions for retiree health. City Counsel,
Lee Tiernan responded that retirees are in the same position as active employees. Mr. Egan
suggested compiling the relevant language from each contract to determine retirees’
eligibility for benefits based on retirement date. Members discussed eligibility provisions for
pre-Medicare retirees and benefits for retirees upon reaching Medicare eligibility.

Mr. Hamilton asked about how pension assets are managed, why the Police and Fire
pension assets are not pooled for investment purposes, and why the Fire pension fund costs
are increasing at a higher rate than the Police. The City will include these in follow up items
for the actuary. Members discussed the ADEC and noted that it is fully funded in the current
year and will need to be fully funded going forward. Mr. White raised concerns about the
independent districts’ obligations and the possibility of the City having to assume Fire
service in the event of a budgetary crisis for one or both districts. Secretary McCaw
responded that OPM counsel will work with the City on figuring this out.

Secretary McCaw asked Mr. Centofanti about any areas of concern he has with the City’s
process for completing the audit and ways to improve timeliness. Mr. Centofanti replied
that much of the delay was related to OPEB reports, but that the City’s financial records
were in good shape. He also indicated the Finance Department has too few people. Mr.
Egan asked how he arrived at that assessment. Mr. Centofanti replied it is based on his
observations of other municipalities. Mr. Egan asked about steps that have been taken to
mitigate the issue. Mayor Rossi replied that they are still looking at processes before hiring
additional staff. Mr. Cieplinski said that many processes are manually intensive. Secretary
McCaw asked that a plan be put together that identifies the processes that are manually
intensive, the Munis modules that are underutilized and a timeline for implementing
remedies. Mr. Walker also asked for benchmarking of similarly sized cities.

b. Review and Discussion: Monthly Financial Report: January FY2019

Mr. Cieplinski provided an overview of the City’s budget status as of the end of January.
Overall, the City is projecting an end of year surplus of approximately $3 million. Mr. White
pointed out that, absent the Municipal Restructuring Funds, the City would be running a
significant deficit. He asked what the City is doing to shrink that. Mr. Cieplinski replied that
the departmental budget requests for FY 2020 are being reviewed by the Mayor currently

2



and the City is aiming to hold expenditures steady. Mr. White asked if the City had resolved
its invoicing issue. Mr. Cieplinski indicated the City is still working on the requisition
process.

c. Update re: MOA Compliance

Mr. Freund reviewed a chart outlining the City’s current compliance with the requirements
for restructuring funds. Mr. White asked if a presentation of the Fire Study will be provided
at the April meeting. Mr. Cieplinski said that the consultant and the districts are trying to
keep the study on schedule. A presentation is still on schedule for April. Mr. Egan
suggested options for the consultant in retrieving some of the data requested from the
districts. Mr. White referenced the City’s plan for achieving budgetary savings through
efficiencies and pointed out that the section dealing with medical benefits makes no
mention of plan changes. Ms. McCaw indicated that all options for medical benefits savings
will be taken up at the committee level. Mr. Hamilton suggested that, if the Partnership
plan is pursued, that language be added to the bargaining unit contracts that allows for a
return to renegotiations on medical benefits should Partnership plan costs increase
substantially in the future. The union contracts in the City of Norwalk include sample
language to consider.

d. Review and Discussion re: Non-Labor Contracts (none)
e. Review, Discussion and Possible Action re: Labor Contract (none)

Town of Sprague issues and ltems
a. Update: Subcommittee Meeting 3/1/19

A summary of the subcommittee meeting held on 3/1 was distributed and discussed. Mr.
Walker expressed concern over the issue of who should bear the cost of addressing a cash
flow problem created by a one-time event, whether it is through a special assessment on
Sprague taxpayers or possibly a loan from the state. He questioned what could be done to
prevent a recurrence. Ms. McCaw said that she shares concerns about the precedent that
would be set by the MARB granting funds in this situation. She mentioned that the
Governor has proposed legislation that would require earlier and more frequent reporting
by boards of education to municipal boards of finance and for early detection of fiscal red
flags in local government. She indicated that the MARB may be able to assist with the cash
flow issue, but would need to be careful about the precedent set.

First Selectwoman Osten provided background on the origins of the problem and steps the
Town has taken to cover the deficit. She described problems the Town had in obtaining
accurate financial information from the Board of Education under the prior business
manager. Mr. Hamilton asked if the Town has conducted a forensic audit and whether
insurance could cover some of the questioned costs. Ms. Osten responded that getting
assistance from insurers and other authorities has been difficult. She said that the only
forensic investigating thus far has been by her office and bookkeeper. Mr. Walker suggested
the MARB be on record supporting legislative changes that would help municipalities and
strengthen the role of the MARB. Mr. White suggested the MARB consider temporary
assistance to help support some of these recovery efforts, such as electronic discovery, etc.

3



VI.

Mr. Egan asked whether assistance from the State police could be requested. Ms. McCaw
indicated she could raise the issue with the commissioner. Members discussed internal
control improvements, approval procedures and reporting requirements to consider. Ms.
McCaw asked that the BOE participate in the next meeting and that reporting by the BOE be
included in the monthly financial reporting.

City of Hartford Issues and Items

a. Update: Subcommittee Meeting 2/21/19

An update of the 2/21 subcommittee meeting was provided. The City’s OPEB advisor gave a
presentation on the OPEB Fund. Segal Consulting provided an analysis of health insurance
options for the Board of Education. The subcommittee reviewed two stipulated arbitration
agreements for the Federation of Teachers and the Principals and Supervisors Association.
The subcommittee also reviewed the Municipal Lawyers Association agreement and
recommended the MARB approve the agreement. The subcommittee also reviewed the
Mayor’s recommendations regarding potential uses of MARB fees.

b. Update: Special Meeting 3/4/19

At the special meeting, the MARB voted to take no action on the Principals and Supervisors
Association arbitration award.

c. Review and Discussion: Monthly Financial Report: January FY2019

Ms. Lazauskas updated the board on the status of the City budget as of the end of January.
The current budget status is consistent with last month’s update and with 5 year plan
estimates. Some of the largest variances are projected in the Police and Fire Departments.
The Mayor explained that these are related to attrition savings and to some delayed hiring
to fill vacancies. He indicated that the variance likely won’t be repeated next year as
positions are now being filled. The City runs its own academy which serves as a sort of
regional academy because spots are often offered to neighboring towns. Mr. Egan asked if
the attrition was due to collective bargaining. The Mayor responded that the Police
vacancies were largely due to staff reaching retirement age, while Fire vacancies appeared
to be in anticipation of collective bargaining.

d. Review and Discussion re: Non-Labor Contracts
i. DATTCO

Health and Human Services Director Liany Arroyo summarized the contract which is a one-
year renewal for transportation services for seniors. Services are for residents aged 60 and
over providing transportation to senior centers, hospital visits, dialysis appointments, and
grocery store visits. The annual cost is $730,000, funded primarily by the City’s General Fund
(5500,000) supplemented by grants from the Greater Hartford Transit District and the Area
Agency on Aging. The service is age-based and does not have income limits. The City
anticipates going out to bid for the service next year.

e. Review, Discussion and Possible Action re: Labor Contract
i. Municipal Lawyers Association
4



VIL.

VIII.

Mayor Bronin summarized the tentative agreement which covers the period July 2015 to
June 2021. The TA provides for 0% wage increases in the first four years followed by 2%
increases in FY 2020 and FY 2021. The TA shifts employees to a high deductible health plan
and increases employee contributions for health insurance and pension. Mr. Walker asked
about how savings are projected if wages increase in the last two years. Mayor Bronin
explained that a wage reserve was budgeted for potential increases, and that increased
pension contributions further offset salary increases. Mr. Walker made a motion, seconded
by Mr. White, to approve the contract. All voted in favor.

ii. Hartford Municipal Employees Association

Mayor Bronin summarized the arbitration award. This arbitration award is consistent with
other City contracts. The award provides for four years of wage freezes, no step increase in
the final year of the contract, and the implementation of a high deductible health plan.
The contract covers approximately 172 employees. Secretary McCaw noted that 90% of
the City’s positions were awarded by the arbitration panel. Mr. Walker made a motion to
take no action, seconded by Mr. White. All voted in favor.

Other Business

Adjourn
Ms. Savitsky made a motion, seconded by Mr. Hamilton, to adjourn at 12:48 PM. All voted
in favor.



6102 "L yorepy

INJI}0BUUOYN
‘UaAeH 1sap\ Jo Aln

Awey jeqoib .mv_& a1 Jo ued Ajpnoad

S3IAVd
dONNODO




L68L NI ASHSITEVLISS
SYOSIAQY ANV SLNYLINNODOY

S3IAYQ
YONNODO

9-1-1SH se pauodal suosuedwoo Aejebpng =

%66 'S¢ ue|d uoisuad juswiedaq ail4 umoibuljly 'z
%00°G8 | ue|d uoisuad adljod AU |

:SMOJ||0} Se atom abejuaolad papun) sue|d Uuoisuad =

LSH'eeg’ 1 $ AQ pasealoul 9oUB[Eq pun) pund Iameg =

601 6£5%
AQ pasesaloul aouejeq punj pun4 juswuedsq alid umolbul|ly =

°,9G'0) SeM sainjipuadxs
Jo abejusdlad e se aduejeq pun) paubisseun pun{ |elaudy)

€28'61£°02$ Ag pasealoul adoueeq punj pun4 |eIaudL) =




L68L NI 3HSI1g V1S3
SHOSIAQY ANV SLNYLNNODOV

S3IAVA
DR

(66-86 "s6d) Gy L-vv | seINPeyos |SY MaN "z
(92-2£ "sBd) sainsojosip 8j0uj00) maN 1
d3d0 siayoes] 9lelS =

(211 "Bd) eoueeg pund ul sebuey) pue ‘sainjipuadxy
‘SONUBASY JO JuBWBlL]S pun4 |eJsusy) — ¢ 9| MON =

(801-901 "sBd /-G se|npayos) se|npayos [ejuswsddns
Se POPN|OUl 8Je SJUSWSJE}S [BIOUBUIL PUNL 9OIAISS [BUIBIU|

pajuswajduwii
Alres sem ‘sajnioy Aieionpid ‘g JUsWalelS qsyn




L68L NI GIHSIIAVLSA
SHOSIAQY OGNV SLNYLNNODOV

s3IAvd
HdONNODO
Did i§

(Aupgisuodsal ou) uonewloul puall

(Aljiqisuodsal ou) uoinoes Alojonpoaiu|

(01 uone|al ul) uonewsojul Arejuswa|ddng

(ponwi) (1SY) uonewloju| Areyuswajddng Ue_:cmm
@mzm_\,_ BUYIO -
‘SjuswWIale]S [elourUl} UO uoluldo paljipowun — suoluldQ  «

:Aljiqisuodsal Jo |oAeT] — sbulpeay uonoeg

(-2 sbd) sjuswalels [elouruld uo uoidQ =




L68L NEQ3HSINavLsSa
SHOSIAQY NV SLNYLNNODDY -

SIIAVQ

(Buoss) 186pnq Bunelado Areyebpng
[B10} JO %+G1-%0 | saullepinb Aousbe Buney =

(spredaid) 2zS‘L61 1S Jo @oURIRg PUN m_n_m_ocmawcoz .

%9G°0 Sem sainjipuadxa
Jo abejusoled e se souejeq punj pasubisseuq =

(£1 "Bd) 229°686$ J0 @oUBlRq PUN) PBUBISSBUN =




L6BL NI QaHSITAVLSI
SYOSIAQY NV SINVYLNNODDVY

S3IAVd
dONNQODO ,

627 790'c$ Jo sbuines Buipueds ¢
019°1G2$ Aq 196pNnq Jo $S80X8 Ul BNUBASY 7

000°GEL91$ Jo spuoq Buipunj Holep panss| |

0] oNp Sem asesa.dul 1aN

(c8-8. 'sbd) (siseg Arerebpng) €-1-1SH
£28'61.£°02$ 40 SOUBIEQ PUN} Ul 8SBBIOUI 1N
(61 "6d) @ uax3




L681 NI Q3HSHIgVLSE
SYOSIAQY NV SLNVLNNODDY

S3IAVQ
YONNODO .
Id §,

SenusAal [eljuswuianobislu] -

| ‘wodj Ajurewnd
GG8°'6 L ¥$ J0 parebpng uey) sse| senuanal Aq 19sy0

salnjpuadxe |puuosied
:woJ) Ajuewnd $9z2‘6£6$ Jo sBuines @c_cc_mqm L
10} 8NP Sem 8sealoul 1N
(58-c8 "sbd) (siseg Aieyebpng) 9-4-ISH =
601'6E£G$ JO dOUEBIRQ PUN) Ul 8SBBIOUI ]BN =

(61 "6d) g uqyx3




L68L Nt GIHSITAVLSS
SHOSIAQY ANV SLNYLNNOIDY

S3IAVd
YONNODO ,

Pid

000‘LEY$ Alorewixoidde Aq
sjuswaAoidwi WwalsSAS U0I108]|09 10) Sainlipuadxa sso

10} 8NP $SG 02’ 1S Jo peredionue uey) ssaj sainypuadxy 2

000°098%
Ajerewixoidde Ag sejewlss Jo SS8IX8 Ul SONUBASY |

.0] ©NP SeM 8SEa.JOUl 19N

1SY'SE8 1S JO BouUeleq punj ul 8sealoul 18N
(61 "6d) @ Haux3




1681 NI O3HSIBVYLSS
mmOm_>D<DZ<mFZ<._.ZDOUU<

SIIAVA
JONNODO ,

(G29°'0b.L'v$ sem £102)
9Le'6¢t v$ sem ajqeded swig)) -

€61°'/68'6% sem Hoyep uonisod 18U [B]O] =

(€2 "6d) 916°181$ sem swooul Bunesado [ejo] -




L68L NI Q3HSIAVLSE
SYOSIAQY OGNV SLNVINNODOV

S3IAVQ
YONNODO ,~

Did

olg'eel'y ¢ I¥S'€96t $ 00016 $  SZZ'P.0C ¢ ®olqeAed swie|)

(e67'268'6)8 (6L1'262°2) $ (66G'G29)$ (SLLv/6'1)$ uonisod jaN
ove'l8y ¢ 8LL'PSS  $ (1S¥'952)$  6/2¥81 $ ewooul Bunessdp
[B101 uoiesuadwo)  Ayiger [eJIPB
SIENIIY) |elausy)

(LOL-G0| "sbd) /-G se|npsayos




L&68BL NI QaHS|I8 VLSS
SHUOSIAGY OGNV SLNY.LNNODDY

S3IAvVA

YONNODO ,
id w,

(%EG'L Sem £102) %2/ umolbul|y %
(%7901 sem £102) %09'8 :891j04 AlID

| - IuInjal Jo sejel |enuuy
%/Z2'22 wio} dn ‘o,66'c2  :umolbul||y
%E L ¥8 Wwoly dn ‘9,00°G8 991104 AlID

:sebejuaoiad Buipun -

(68-88 "sbd) g-v8 1Sy

(€6-98 "sbd) sejnpayog |SY -

a./\u

A
N
/U

(9¢-G¢ 'sbd) r pue | suquuxg
HOISUIJ




L68L Nt Q3HSNEVYLSA
SHOSIAQY ANV SLNYLNNODDVY

SIIAYQ
YONNODO ,

Pid &

000‘6£2$ Ajerewixoidde pasealoul umoibul)y
000'821$ Ajerewixoidde pasesaoul Al =

CEHIER &

[S69°262$ J0 A4 Ul 9BuByD]L80°E9,  umolbully =
[990°2£0°01$ 10 A4 Ul 9BUBYD]YEE L08'9$ o -

Tegx Iolld

[921°2¥2$ 10 Ad Ul oBueyD]980'y9,  umolbullly
[¥21°981'8% 10 A4 Ul 86UBYD]90Y V9. V$ AD -

TesA Juaiing

:uollsod 18u ul sebueyn




1681l NI GIHSBVLSH
mmOm_>o<Dz<wkz<hZDOUU<

mm_><ﬁ_ f,
HONNODO ~
Pid

(eoUBLIBdXS [enjoe pue pajoedxe usamiaq SeouslallIp)

180/ 1 2$ JO 8dousliadxe |enjoe pue pajoadxe usamiaq

B8dualaip 8y} Aq pasneo Aljiger 9340 AuD ul esealou] =
£66'Ges'se ¢ 600ClE'Se $  umolbully .
212292 v91$ /21°0L1°E81$ A«

102 810¢ :SolljIgel 93d0O =

(26-96 sebed) se|npsyog |SY =

810z ‘0€ aunp je Paysi|gelse spunj 1sni} oN =

Sue|d d3d0O umolbuljly pue AID




SYOSIAQY ONV SLNVINNODODY

S3IAVd
YONNODO -
Did s

£81'819°'98$ :sioyoeal A1 0] a|qeoldde ajelS
oy} Ag peplodal Alljigel] 9340 sieyoes] 8jels 190 «

Ajuo ainsojosiq «

uoisuad siayoes) aje1g 0} JBjllIS <

. (66-86 'sBd ‘Ay1/vY L-ISH) — STEIS
ue|d g3d0 Sieyoes] a1els J0} S8INSO|ISIP MON =




L68L NI QaHSITaVLSa
mmOw_>o<DZ<mFZ<FZDOUU<

S3IAVA
4ONNODO
Did s

(2L-11 "sBd) s1s00 pauonsanb Jo sbuipuiy -
18JSN|D UOHUINN PIYD e
(V3Q@i) Je1sn|D uoneonpy jeroadsg «

(01 "6d) peisa) sweiboud g =

(£-9 "sbd) juads ssjuow [eispa Jo 8|NPBYIS =

(G-g'sbd) soueldwoo uo uoluido paiypowun =

AN T
34D

NP RN




L6BL NIQIHSITEVLSH
SHOSIAQY ONY SLNYLNNODOV

S3IAva , | o)

mozzowv.xm@ (L2-0¢ sbd) s1s00 psuolisanb 10 sbuipui4

_uc:n_ co:mtoach 1 SlueiH) peoy pIyY UMOL
piy-ul-sjueln) jedioluniy
weiboid uswanoidw| |eude) |eoo0

s|endsoH aseasi(] dluoIy H/|eiausr) pue
sabo||00 81.AlId Uo (1OT1d) Sexe] Jo nalq ul JuswAed

uoleIpaway plalumo.lg
sjouIsIg [004oS Alliold Ul sssulpeay |00ydS

bl
)

:(0z Bd) peise] sweiboud g
(91-G| sbd) juads seiuow 8)e1g JO BINPBYIS =

(Y 1-g | ~sbd) aoue)dwoo uo uoluido payipowun =




L6BL NIQIMSINEYLSA
SUOSIAQY ANV SLNVINNODDY

S3IAvVd

HONNODO .

Phid &

Wod popd @ luejojusd|
20ve-61¥ (098)

ljuejolua) ydasop



